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Moments In 

Ministry 

The Academy of 

Our Lady of Mercy 

In January 1830, one month after Bishop John England established the Sisters of Our Lady of Mercy, they 

opened a school in a small rented house at 11 Friend Street (now Legare Street), near the old wooden 

Cathedral. Sr. M. Teresa Barry and Sr. M. Augustine Burke, then novices, were assigned to teach the six pupils 

who constituted the entire student body.  

 
 

Bishop England rented a larger house for the 

Community on Friend Street, opposite the old 

Cathedral, which served as Convent, Academy 

and girls’ orphanage. Besides day students, a few 

boarding pupils were accepted in the Academy. 
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Sr. Veronica Cagney was appointed First Mistress of the Academy. 

 
 

While Bishop England was in Europe Father Andrew Byrne, Ecclesiastical Superior, rented a larger house for 

the OLMs on Beaufain Street one door west of Cummin Street.  Sr. Benedicta Datty, OLM Mother Superior, 

also served as Directress of the Academy.  

 
 

On February 16, 1841 the OLMs and 24 boarders moved from 

Beaufain Street into a new four story brick Convent on Queen 

Street which also housed the Academy and girls’ orphanage.  
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In March the OLMs 

bought the Alston 

Mansion (now known as 

the Russell House) on 

Meeting Street. Shortly 

thereafter the Academy 

moved from Queen Street 

to the new location where 

it remained for the next 30 

years.  
 

Bishop Ignatius Reynolds, second Bishop of Charleston, encouraged 

the OLMs to broaden the Academy curriculum to include French, 

music and other studies likely to attract young ladies from higher 

social classes.  Painting, drawing, needlework, embroidery and 

dancing were added.  Parents selected the subjects they wished their  

children to study.  
 

The OLMs rented a large house in Summerville, SC, for a summer 

school for Academy students whose parents or guardians so desired.  

 
 

The Academy students and teachers made a flag for the Irish 

Volunteers in SC, and one for the Irish Volunteers for the War in 

Virginia.  

 
 

In September during the bombardment of Charleston, Sr. M. Joseph 

Kent, some Sisters, boarders and orphans moved inland to Sumter, 

SC, where they opened a school which became St. Joseph’s 

Academy after the War. Those who remained in Charleston moved  

to the upper part of the City where they opened a Day School.  

 
 

The Charleston City Directory lists the OLM Academy at 32 and 34 

Rutledge Avenue,  Mr. Tunno’s houses.  However, OLM records 

note that the Academy was reopened on Queen Street in September 

1866.  
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The Academy closed the Boarding Department for financial reasons. For the next seven years the Academy 

accepted day students only.  
 

Following the earthquake which struck Charleston on August 31, 1886, the Academy was closed until repairs to 

the building were completed. It reopened on November 3, 1886.  

 
 

Needlework done 
by students of the 
Academy of Our 

Lady of Mercy 
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Mrs. Elizabeth O’Neill Verner, Charleston’s well-known artist and author, was an eleven year old 

pupil at the Academy in 1893. Many years later she shared her memories of her student days in an 

interview published in a Charleston newspaper.  

 
 

Etching donated by Mrs. Verner 
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When the Queen Street property became the City 

Orphan Asylum, housing both boys and girls, the 

Russell House became the OLM Motherhouse, 

and, the Academy was moved to 203 – 05 

Calhoun, which had been the Boys’ Orphanage.  

 
 

Mrs. Fortune Ryan purchased the Calhoun Street 

property from the Diocese to establish a retreat 

house for laywomen.  As a result, the Academy 

of Our Lady of Mercy moved to 54 George 

Street, the building vacated by St. Mary’s Free 

School which closed on June 5, 1906.    
 

In December 1909 the OLM Community moved 

into their newly built Motherhouse located at 68 

Legare Street. Officially known as the Convent 

of Our Lady of Mercy, the building also housed 

the Academy of Our Lady of Mercy from 1909 

to 1930.  
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Miss Iona McAlister and Miss Mary Trainer, students at the Academy of Our Lady of Mercy, were among 

eleven prize winners in an essay contest sponsored by the The Catholic Standard & Times of Philadelphia and 

open to all Catholic High Schools and Academies in the USA. 

 
 

The Sisters of Our Lady of Mercy celebrated the Community’s Centennial on December 8, 1929. On this 

occasion the Alumnae Association of the Academy of Our Lady of Mercy gave the Community a pair of silver 

vases for use on the altar and a bronze tablet with the following inscription: “To the memory of the Co-

Foundresses Mother Mary Joseph O’Gorman, Mother Mary Martha O’Gorman and Mother Mary Teresa Barry 

the guiding spirit of the Community for many years Erected by the Alumnae and Parent Auxiliary of the 

Academy of Our Lady of Mercy”.  On Monday morning, December 9th, a Mass was celebrated in the Convent 

for the Alumnae of the Academy. That evening a reception for the members was held in the Cathedral Hall. On 

Tuesday evening An Historical Pageant was presented at the Academy of Music. Students from all the Catholic 

Schools in the City, including the Academy, participated.  
 

OLM Council Minutes for May 7, 1930 state the following: “Owing to the demand for teachers for the 

parochial schools, the Council found it necessary to close the Academy of Our Lady of Mercy.”  

On June 13th the Academy graduated its last class. Bishop Walsh presided at the Commencement and presented 

diplomas to the seven members of the senior class.   A play, “The Day We Graduate”, was presented by the 

graduating class the evening before Commencement.  
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1916, Legare Street, OLM Sisters and Students of the Academy of OLM 

Left side:  Sister Alexis McCreen, Sister Aloysius McGrory, Sister 

Annunciata Hogan 

Center:  Sister Carmel Carter 

Right side: Standing, Sisters de Sales D’Antonio, Inside, Sister Martha 

Croghan, Outside, Sister Marcellina Frayne. 
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OLM Sisters, Employees and Guests TOTALLY enjoyed 

the 2017 Solar Eclipse 


